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The Secretary 

Independent Planning Commission NSW 

Level 3, 201 Elizabeth Street 

Sydney NSW 2000 

Re Yass Valley Wind Farm Modification Assessment (SSD 6698 Mod 1) 

This written submission is on behalf of myself and my wife Elesa Bennett as residents and owners of 

the property known as Garryowen. 

We have made two previous submissions a letter dated 7/11/2018 and a by having Michael 

Chapman speak on our behalf at the Public Meeting held in Yass on the 12/11/2018. 

I have viewed some photos and a video taken from a drone on 16/11/2018 and had a briefing from 

Matt Bingley regarding his visit to the site of on 13/11/2018  now known as Coppabella Wind Farm 

(CWF). I have attached the photos and a link to the video is: https://youtu.be/Vxer cpI1LA 

Fragile Land and Significant impact on remaining Woodland 

The fragility of the landscape and the need for restoration to stabilise the mountain range is clear 

from the photos/video of the proposed site of the CWF. The construction and latter operation of the 

CWF will accelerate the degradation of the mountain range in a permanent manner. 

Vegetation is scarce in the general area (as shown in the photos) so the proposed additional 111.5 

ha to be cleared would be a significant proportion of the available vegetation. I do not have the 

detail of the total area involved but I encourage the Independent Planning Commission (IPC) to 

establish this figure, it is key to the survival of the habit and the fauna/bird life associated with it.  

I note that no expert such as a geologist or civil engineer other than Mr Andre Filed has provided a 

report on the feasibility of CWF and how this project would be possible on such a fragile site. 

Mr Andrew Field (Yass Earth Movers) at the Public Meeting in Yass presented a detailed assessment 

outlining that the CWF should not go ahead as it will cause significant erosion and general 

destruction to the Coppabella Range 

The area of the wind turbines that will be faced by bird life has increased by 38%. 

This is calculated as  

Diameter 121m radius approved 60.5m this equates to an area of 11,499 sqm  

Diameter 142m radius proposed 71m this equates to an area of 15,837 sqm 

Net increase in the presented area that a bird might strike is 4338 sqm or 38%. This calculation does 

not consider the movement of the rotors however it does give an indication of the possible impact. 

 



A detailed study needs to be taken following the Biosis Report approach. 

During the visit to the CWF site several Wedge-tail Eagles (WTE) were sighted 

The report by Biosis Research Pty Ltd titled “Wind farm collision risk for birds” (Biosis Report) 

contains a modelling process to calculate an estimated risk. In this report it states that the average 

wind rotor diameter in Australia at the time of the report was 60 to 90 meters so the modelling 

would need to be adjusted as the turbines proposed are almost double. The Tasmanian WTE has a 

report detailed in this publication it states “Wind farms may pose a risk of collision to the eagle as 

bird mortalities are known from wind farms in a variety of situations world wide and a few WTE’s 

have already been recorded as casualties of collision with turbines in Tasmania and elsewhere in 

Australia.” 

The birds sited during the visit to the CWF site on Tuesday were WTE’s.  

The report goes on to say “Breeding adults occupy home ranges year round and generally maintain 

life-long monogamous pair bonds.” It goes on to say “It appears usual for home-ranges to be 

occupied throughout the adult life of WTE’s and whilst nest sites may be used in different years, a 

given nest may be re-used for many years and even by subsequent generation of birds. During the 

breeding season adult pairs concentrate their activities on a nesting territory, which is a core portion 

of the year round home -range”. I have observed this behaviour in regard to other eagle types such 

as Osprey and Sea Eagles. 

In regard to avoidance the report states “It would seem likely that avoidance by a species with the 

flight characteristics of the Tasmanian WTE would generally be in the range of 95% to !00%”. These 

flight characteristics are similar for other WTE and large raptors. “Data from overseas, based on 

findings of bird carcasses, demonstrates that large raptors do collide with turbines.” 

In addition to this we have the potential collision with other infrastructure plus the increased 

reduction in habitat/vegetation so the proposal to increase the wind farm will have an impact on the 

local bird life and the WTE population. 

I note that the CWF obtained a report titled “Coppabella Wind Farm Proposed turbine Modification 

Impacts on Birds and Bats” to support its application. 

It is interesting to note: 

In 2.3 of the introduction on page 6 “there have been no previous formal bird utilisation surveys 

(BUS) at CWF collecting data on flight heights of recorded birds”. 

The report relies on inferred data from other sites the basis seems to be reviews of previous studies 

and infer results from those. The superb Parrot has data from 2016 however in regard to other 

species the data relies on 2008-2009 data (refer 3.1.1, 3.1.2) 

The report states that WTE’s have collided with turbines at other wind farms in New South Wales 

and elsewhere in Australia. Refer WTE Page 12. 

The report in this paragraph states that three pairs of WTE were recorded at CWF which must have 

been in 2008 to 2009 as no surveys are quoted for a latter date. Since 5 WTE were observed during 

the visit to CWF, it is likely that the breeding population has expanded considerably. 

The report does not use the processes outlined in the Biosis Report, uses out of date data and 

infers from previous studies. It cannot be relied upon in determining the impact on “Birds and 

Bats” in regard to the CWF as it purports to do. 



In Elesa’s letter under the heading “Impact on Bio-diversity not acceptable” we refer to the bird 

sanctuary on Garryowen as well as the planting of tree corridors to this sanctuary which is 

orientated toward the Coppabella Range.  We are commited to preserving the local bird life and 

contributing to carbon absorption. 

In summary; 

The Fragile land cannot sustain the increased size proposed in the modification to the CWF put 

forward by Goldwind 

No expert report has been commissioned to verify the increased proposals ability to be built and its 

impact on the fragile mountain during the build process and after when it is in operation. 

The increase clearing of vegetation presents an unacceptable impact on the vegetation remaining on 

the Coppabella range. 

The study assessing the impact on Birds and Bats is flawed and should not be relied on. 

The WTE habitat is threatened and the possibility of collision/death has gone up. 

Therefore: 

I encourage the Independent Planning commission to deny the modification application 

Yours sincerely 

 

 

Philip Bennett  

PhD, MBA ,B.Comm, FCPA 

 

 

  














































